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Office of the Assistant Attoruey General : Washington, D.C. 20530
May 27, 2004

Mr. Scott Muller

General Counsel -

Central Intelligence Agency

Room 7C24 Headquarters Bldg,

‘Washington, D.C, 20505

Dear Scott:

' Thank you for sending us a copy of the Inspector Genera) Report concerning the
Central Intelligence Agency’s program for enhanced intemrogation techniques.

Information in that report has raised concerns about certain aspects of :
interrogations in practice. As you know, the opinion that the Office of Legal Counsel
provided to John Rizzo in August 2002 addressing ten enhanced interrogation techniques
depended upon a number of factual assumptions as well as limitations concerning how
those techniques would be applied, and it is my understanding that this Office
subsequently agreed that the same legal principles, subject to the same factual
assumptions and limitations, could be applied for interrogations of persons other than the

~ specific individual addressed in that August 2002 opinion. Our initial review of the
Inspector General’s Report reises the possibility that, at least in some instances and
particularly early in the program, the actual practice may not have been congruent with
all of theso assurnptions and limitations. .

In particular, it appears that the application of the waterboard technique may have
deviated in some respects from the descriptions in our opinion. We have not yet
reviewed all the pertinent facts to determine whether such deviations are material for
purposes of the advice we provided. Some facts discussed by the Report had clearly been
discussed with Department of Justice personnel in 2003, Some other information,
however, appears to have be¢n generated in the course of the Inspector General’s inquiry.
It raises a concern, for example, that the Inspector General has suggested, among other

things, that the “SBRE waterboard experience is so different from the subsequent Agency
usage as to make it almost irrelevant.” IG Report at 22 n.26. As you know, the use of the
waterboard in SERE training was a significant factor in this Office’s legal analysis. [

understand that the waterboard technique has not been used since March 2003. ‘In light of
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the assertions in the Inspector General’s Report, and the factual assumptxons underlymg
our advice, we strongly recoriend that any use of this technique remain suspended until
we have had a more thorough oppo:tumty to review the Report and the factual assextlons
init.. .

We recommend that with respeot to the use of the other nine techniques, you ‘
review the steps you have already taken to ensure that in actual pracuce any use of those
techniques adheres closely to the asmmptlons and limitations stated in our oplmon of
August 2002

Finally, the Report also includes mfennatlon conceming interrogations that are

not part of the enhanced interrogation techmques program. As you know, we have not
provided advice on practices desoribed in those portions of the Report.

Smcerely,

C},u W
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" September 6, 2004

:;I ohn A. Rizzo, Esq.

Acting General Counsel
Central Intelligence Agency
Washington, D.C. 20505

(h)(1 )

. Dearlohn: (b)(3) NatSecAct-

i)

EFB‘:M You have asked our advxce regardmg whether the use of twelve
pamcular interrogation techniques (attentlon grasp, walling, facial hold, facial slap (insult slap),

-cramped confin€nient, wall standing, stress positions, sleep deprivation, dietary manipulation,

" nudity, water dousing, and abdommal slap) in the interrogation of Ahmed Khalfan: Ghailani would
Vviolate any ‘United States statute (inchiding 18U.S.C. § 2340A); the United States Constxtut!on,
or any treaty ebligation of the United ‘States.- We ‘understand that Ghailani is.an al- Qa'ida "’
-operative who “i “js believed to be involved in the. opérational planning of an ‘al-Qa’ida attack or
-attacks to take place in the United States prior to- the November elections.” September 5, 2004

* letter from[ Jto Dan Levin. This letter conﬁrms our advice that the use of these
(techmgues on.Ghailani outside temtory subject to United States Junsdlctwn would not violate any

of these provisions. We. will supply, at a later date, an opinion that explains the basis for this

conclusion Our, advxce is bascd .on, and hmltcd by, the fol]owmg conditions:.,

(b)(3) CIAAct

1. Thc use of these techmqucs will confoun to ‘all rcpresentatxons prevnously made to us,

‘ mc'ludmg fhose listed in'my August 26, 2004 letter o you

- 2 'I‘hc mcdlcal and psychologmal faots and assessmcnts for Ghallam mdxcate that there a:e :

- '_.x'xo ﬁxedxca.l orpsychoIoglcal contramdlcatwns to thc use of any of these techmques as you plan to
o ‘employ them..

3. Medlcal oﬁcexs wﬂl be presen.t to observe Ghax!am whenever any enhanccd techmques '

: . are applied .and will closely. monitor him whilé he is subject to sléep deprivation or d:etary o
L :.mampulatwn, in addltmq to the normal monitoiing ofhlm throughout lns detenﬁon to ensure that o
~ e does not Sustain- any physwal or mental hatm ar

"""""""
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w1 m We express no: opinion on any other uses of these techniques,
: nor do we a any other techni ;

ques or any conditions under which Ghailani or other detainees
. are held. Furthermore, this letter'does not constltute the Departmcnt of Justice’s pohcy approval
ﬁ)r use of the techmques in this or any other case.

Sincerely,

Damel Levm ‘
Actmg Assistant Attomey Gem:ral
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Office of the Assistant Atomey General Washington, D.C. 20530

September 20, 2004

John A. Rizzo, Esq,
Acting General Counsel
Central Intelligence Agency

Washington, D.C. 20505
(B)(1)
(b){3) NatSecAct
Dear John:

('?SL ]NB You have asked our advice regarding whether the use of twelve
particular interrogation techniques (attention grasp, walling, facial hold, facial slap (insult slap),
cramped copfinement, wall standing, stress pos:nons sleep deprivation, dietary manipulation,
nudity, water dousing, and abdominel slap) in the interrogation of Sharif al-Masri would violate
any United States statute (including 18 U.S.C. § 2340A), the United States Constitution, or any
treaty obligetion of the United States. We understand that al-Masri is an al- Qa'ida operative
who “is believed to be involved in the operational planning of an &l-Qa’ida attack or attacks to

~ take place in the United States prior to the November 2004 clections.” Septernber 19, 2004 letter

frc to Dan Levin, This letter confirms our advice that the use of these

tcchmqucs on al-Masri outside territory subject to United States jurisdiction would not violate

'(B’)(3) ClAAct

any of these provisions, We will supply, at a later date, an opinion that explains the basis for this
conclusion. Our advice is based op, and limited by, the following conditions:

1. The use of these techniques w:ll conform to all representations previously made to us,
lncludmg those hsted in my August 26, 2004 letter to you.

2, The medncal and psychologu:al facts and nssessments for al-Masri indicate that there
are no medical or psychological contraindications to the use of any of these techniques as you
plan to employ them.

3, Medical officers will be present to observe al-Masri whenever any enhanced
techniques are applied and will closely monitor him while he is subject to sleep deprivation or

dietary manipulation, in addition to the normal monitoring of him throughout his detention, to

ensure that he does not sustain any physical or mental harm.
A |
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é’fd . j}zﬂ) We express no opinion on any other uses of thcs:teah.niqw.
nor do we address any other techniques or any conditions under which al-Masti or other
detainees are held. Purthermore, this letter does not constitute the Department of Justice's policy

approval for use of the techmiques in this or any other case.

Sincerely,

PR R

Daniel Levin ~
Acting Assistant Attorney General
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